PROFESSOR CATHAL O’'NEILL + ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS
33 PEMBROKE ROAD, DUBLIN 4 TEL + 353 1 668 4622 mail@oneillarch.ie

Dublin City Council
Planning Department
Civic Offices

Wood Quay

Dublin 8

December 2016

Re: Cathal O'Neill Architect seeks permission on be  half of Rustic Way Ltd for the following works
at 43 Aungier Street (a Protected Structure) and 1~ Digges Street, Dublin 2. 43 Aungier Street: The
installation of a moulded cornice at parapet level, the repair and cleaning of the brickwork; the
reinstallation of the existing sliding sash windows , the provision of new timber framed windows
and door at ground level; the repair of damaged pla  ster- and stone-work; the reconstruction of a
missing section of stairs to match original, the re pair of decorative plasterwork and provision of
new to match; the replacement of damaged or missing floor joists and boarding; the installation
of new bar counters at ground, second and third flo ors; and the lowering of the basement floor to
provide 2.4m headroom throughout , the provision of a new door opening leading onto the flat roof
of Nol Digges Street, and associated works. No 1  Digges Street: The reconstruction of all floors
with new joists and floorboards, a new Cort-ten fra med shop-front and fascia at ground level, new
sliding sash windows to first and second floors, a new roof garden with stone paving and with
access from No 43, and with 3.0m high acoustic glas s screen on three sides, supported by cor-ten

steel structural frame and associated internal work S.
Dear Sir or Madam
On behalf of our client we wish to apply for the above development.

The detailed works are described in the accompanying specification and Conservation Method Statement
and comprise the following:

No 43 Aungier Street

Repair/replacement of the original pitched roof;

Clean and Repair/repoint brickwork facades;

Re-install existing sliding sash windows throughout, providing new where required;

Repair plaster and stone fascia including new gold leaf paint name;

Provide low-profile led external lighting to facade;

Repair of all timber floors with new timber joisted and boarded floor to similar dimensions and
design, but having regard to current structural engineering standards;

Reconstruction of missing section of stairs, previously removed and repair of remainder;

The reduction of the basement floor level to provide 2.4m minimum headroom to the basement,
the provision of a new stairs to basement; blocking off the cellars where they extend beneath the
public pavement; providing a new cellar trapdoor within the new site boundaries to be located at
the corner entrance porch;

Repair/reconstruct existing plasterwork;

Reinstate fireplace in first floor and in snug on second floor, relining flue;

Provide new stud partitions in positions shown on plans;

Provide new hot and cold services throughout;
Provide new electrical installation throughout;.

Install fitted furniture as indicated on drawings (removable);
Provide new floor finishes throughput, including solid flooring to designated areas and tiled flooring
tow.c. and sheet vinyl to other wet areas (kitchen and bars);
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No 1 Digges Street

Provide new flat roof membrane with paving slabs to roof level garden

Provide new “Cor-ten” steel structure to roof level supporting glazed acoustic panels for four sides
Re-render entire facade

Provide new sliding sash windows to first and second floor of No 1

Provide modern “Cor-ten” framed shop front pilasters and facia with frameless glass windows and
automatic sliding doors.

Provide new floor structures and boarding as required

Provide new stairs to first floor and basement

Reduce basement floor to provide 2.4 headroom, underpinning existing walls as required.

0 Introduction

No 43 Aungier Street and No 1 Digges Street are adjacent buildings with No 43 standing on the corner of
the two streets and No 1 immediately to its east.

No 43 is a Protected Structure in Dublin City Council’'s Record or Protected Structures (No 306).

The Building is located in Zone Z 5 and is in a Conservation Area
The objectives for Zone Z5 are:

“To consolidate and facilitate the development of the central area, and to identify, reinforce, strengthen
and protect its civic design character and dignity. The primary purpose of this use zone is to sustain life
within the centre of the city through intensive mixed-use development”

History of Area

Aungier Street described as the earliest example of formal suburban planning in Dublin. Dr Christine
Casey states in her book Dublin! ... “the estate of Francis Aungier, Earl of Longford, SE of the walled
enclosure of the walled city, an area of some 20 acres assembled form the former estate of Whitefriars
and adjacent property. Aungier Street, the principal artery of the new suburb was an astonishing 70ft
(20.31m ) wide the broadest contemporary suburb in the.” The road is a projection northwards of Camden
Street/Wexford Street/ Redmond’s Hill which heretofore had veered off to the northwest and then swung
eastwards along the line of the monastery enclosure dating back about 1000 years.

Casey further describes how the estate of the Whitefriars (Carmelite) monastery had been granted to
Francis Aungier’'s grandfather and how the road appears to have cut thought the medieval church yard of
St Peter’s at its north end. There were large aristocratic mansions on the east side and rows of smaller
speculative houses...Speculators included John Linegar who built eight houses in the 1660s. The next
significant building period was in ¢1720, but by this time the Dawson Street area had become more
fashionable so the 18" century houses were smaller. Casey states that there are four or five 17t century
structures remaining, notably Nos 20 and 21, the latter having been the townhouse of the 1st Earl of Rosse,
and that eighteenth century houses also survive including Nos 8, 19, 22, 23 24, 25 and 31. Casey dates
the nearby Swan bar on the corner of York Street to 1897.

A Conservation report was commissioned by Dublin City Council from Blackwood Associates, Architects
in 2002. This is not attached to this application as permission from the authors to reproduce it was not
obtained.

Various registers, directories and newspapers were consulted in the Dublin City archive, one of which
indicates that the building was rebuilt in 1883. For a time it was designated No 44.

Year Occupant Publication

1825 Patrick Brady, Vintner [No 44] " Dublin’s Almanack registry
1830 Patrick Bradt, Grocer Dublin’s Almanack registry
1835 Patrick Brady, Spirits Pettigrew and Oulton

1841 Jas Reilly Pettigrew and Oulton

1 Casey, Christine Dublin — The City within the Grand and Royal Canals and the Circular Road with the Phoenix
Park. Pesvner’s Architectural Guides, Sir Nicolaus Pesvner and Alistair Rowan, Eds., (The Buildings of Ireland and
Yale University press, New Haven and London, 2005) p46
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1846

1860

1870

1880

1885
1887
1895
1905

(Mary Scully Trimming Shop 1 Digges St)
Jas Reilly

(Jos Costello Provisioner 1 Digges St)
James Reilly Vintner

(Tenements 1 - 11 Digges St)
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Freemans Journal March 4 1865

Michael Curran, Grocer and Spirit Merchant
(Digges Street not listed
Michael Curran, Grocer and Spirit Merchant
(Digges Street not listed)
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Fremans Journal October 4 o 1883

Michael Curran, Grocer and Spirit Merchant
Daniel Jordan, Tea, Wine and Spirit Mrcht
Daniel Jordan, Tea, Wine and Spirit Mrcht
William P Kenny, Tea Wine and Spirit Mrch.
(and 1 Digges St)

Thom'’s Directory
Thom'’s Directory
Thom'’s Directory
Thom'’s Directory
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1915

1925

1935

1938

1945
1955
1965
1975

Freeman's Journal 18 ™ April 1911

Clarke and Heary Tea Wine and Spirit Mrchts ~ Thom’s Directory
(and 1 Digges Street)
Thomas Heary Tea Wine and Spirit Mrchts Thom'’s Directory
(and 1 Digges Street
Thomas Heery (sic) Tea Wine and Spirit Mrchts Thom'’s Directory
(and 1 Digges Street)
Philip Lynch Irish Independent

Irish Press 5 " March 1938

Philip Lynch, Tea Wines and Spirits Thom'’s Directory
Philip Lynch, Tea Wines and Spirits Thom'’s Directory
Philip Lynch, Tea Wines and Spirits Thom'’s Directory
Martin J and Catherine O’'Reilly, Bar Thom'’s Directory

Irish Independent November 25 ™ 1976
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1985 John O’Dwyer, Bar Thom'’s Directory
1990 The Aungier House, Martin Lenihan Thom'’s Directory
1995 The Aungier House Thom'’s Directory

Ordnance Survey Map ¢.1840

Griffiths Valuation Map 1852
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Ordnance Survey Map c¢.1912

1 Design Statement

The Buildings

These appear to have been connected for more than a century. No 43, on the corner of Aungier
street/Digges Street is a good example of late-Victorian Public House architecture, similar in design to a
number of other Dublin pubs, notably the International Bar, Wicklow Street. It is a four-storey over full
basement, two-bay and three bay, terraced building with pitched roof, parapet gutters to the street
elevations, which would have originally had a projecting cornice, possibly of Roman Cement and flush
eaves to the other two sides.

Projecting Cornice
43 Aungier St c¢. 1950

The facade is of smooth red brick, Flemish bond with cream brick bands. The windows have low brick
arched heads, and granite cills, and would have originally had two-over-two pane sliding sash windows.

2/2 Sash Window
43 Aungier St. c. 1970
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The reveals are brick At first floor level there is a projecting cornice with fascia with recesses above the
tops of the capitals, which, in one case at least originally housed a roller blind. The ground floor has brick
pilasters to both street elevations. At the ends these have plain fluted capitals whereas the intermediates
have acanthus leave capitals, as does the round polished stone column at the corner. The pilasters frame
large windows to the main public house area at ground floor, with brick stall risers below, that on Aungier
Street being lower than those on Digges Street. As is typical, the entrance door was originally recessed
on the corner with access from both adjacent streets. The north wall which would have originally abutted
four storey buildings on Aungier Street, (now demolished to single storey) is rendered and has a large
billboard mounted thereon. The east elevation, where the building is higher than No 1 Digges Street, is
also rendered.

The basement projects beyond the building line under the pavement and is served by cellar doors in the
public footpath.

Internally, the building is in very poor condition. Few decorative features remain, other than the plasterwork
on the first floor. The fireplace surrounds have been removed, There is a cast iron column on the line of
the dividing wall between Nos 1 and 43. The stairs between ground and first floor is in No 1 Digges Street
only, and that between first and second floors has been removed and replaced with a circular stairs. The
original stairs remains between second and third floors.

No 1 Digges Street may have been rebuilt in the mid-nineteenth century. It is a three storey- three bay
semi-detached building with windows onto Digges Street only, and having blank north and east facades.
It has a low pitched roof behind a parapet, and a rendered and badly painted facade to Digges Street. The
ground floor facade has a 20t century shop front of poor design and the building has many bill boards
affixed. It also has a cellar. The building contains the stairs to the basement and first floors. It is of
unremarkable design with few features of merit.
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2 CONSERVATION METHOD STATEMENT

The works generally shall conform to the principles outlined in the Department of Arts, Heritage
and the Gaeltacht publication “Architectural Herita ge Protection; Guidelines for Planning
Authorities”. (2004, 2011)

The writer is an architect with 33 years’ post-graduate experience, predominantly in the practice of
architectural conservation, and holds a Master’s Degree in Urban and Building Conservation (UCD 2007).
He has acted as conservation consultant to OPW, HSE, Dublin City Council and Waterways Ireland.
Cathal O'Neill Architects is an accredited RIAI Conservation Practice (Grade Il).

“7.2.2. Entry into the Record of Protected Structures does not mean that a structure is forever frozen in time. Good
conservation practice allows a structure to evolve and adapt to meet changing needs while retaining its particular
significance.

7.3.1 Itis generally recognised that the best method of conserving a historic building is to keep it in active use. Usually
the original use for which a structure was built will be the most appropriate, and to maintain that use will involve the
least disruption to its character. While a degree of compromise will be required in adapting a protected structure to
meet the requirements of modern living, it is important that the special interest of the structure is not unnecessarily
affected.

7.7.5 Another acceptable option to replace a lost element would be to incorporate, as a new feature, a design that is
sympathetic with the remaining historical features of the building. Where this is permitted, it should be a condition that
the new feature take into account the size, scale and material of the building itself, and care should be taken to avoid
creating a false historical appearance.

7.8.3 Where new alterations and additions are proposed to a protected structure, it should be remembered that these
will, in their turn, become part of the structure’s history and so it is important that these make their own positive
contribution by being well designed and constructed.

7.9.1 It should be the aim of good conservation practice to preserve the authentic fabric which contributes to the
special interest of the structure. Good repair will arrest the process of decay of a structure and prolong its life without
damaging its character and special interest. Where a damaged or deteriorated feature could reasonably be repaired,
its replacement should not be permitted.

7.12.1 The use of processes which are reversible, or substantially reversible, when undertaking works to a protected
structure is always preferable as this allows for the future correction of unforeseen problems, should the need arise,
without lasting damage being caused to the architectural heritage

8.3.26 ... Brickwork repairs need detailed specification and an applicant should be required to provide the planning
authority with all necessary information to allow an assessment of the proposals. This information could include:

a) the specification of any replacement bricks;

b) a sample of the replacement brick;

c) the specification and extent of any proposed repointing;

d) the techniques to be used in carrying out the

works, and

e) the experience and expertise of the people who will be responsible for the work.

It is proposed to repair specific elements of the b uilding, in accordance with guidance issued by the
Department of Environment/Heritage (Advice Series —v  arious dates) as follows:

1 Brick
It is intended to implement the recommendations outlined by the brick repair specialist in the attached report.

2 Roof

It is intended to retain the existing later fibre cement roof which appears to be in good condition. If replacement is
necessary this will be done using natural slates in accordance with the specification developed by this office and the
DoELG Advice series, “ A Guide to the repair of Historic Roofs” (2010). Existing ridge and hip tiles will be retained
and reused, as will the cast iron roof-light providing access to the valleys. New cast iron rainwater goods will replace
the gutter and rwp to the rear and other later pvc pipework.

3 Joinery

Floors

Floors will be lifted, joists checked for damage/rot and repaired where necessary. Joists which are more than 50%
damaged will be replaced with new timber joists of the same size. Subject to the requirements of the Fire Safety

WWW.ONEILLARCH.IE



Certificate (if required), the fire resistance of floors may be upgraded by the insertion of an Envirograf or similar fire
resistant blanket within their depth.

Windows

The existing frames will generally be retained in-situ. A substantial number of the original sashes, with glass, are in
storage inside the building, and it is intended that these would be cleaned, repaired where necessary and re-installed.
A draught-proofing system using timber, not pvc, parting and staff beads will be used. New, salvaged counter-weights
will be provided and the sash cords replaced. Missing shutter leaves and shutter boxes will be replaced/reconstructed.
New brass pulleys and hardware will be provided. Original glass will be retained.

Doors
There are a number of original doors, frames and architraves remaining and it is proposed to retain these. New doors
will be fabricated to match those which are missing.

Stairs
The original stairs between first and second floors was completely removed. Itis proposed to construct a stairs similar
in style to that which would have been originally in place, with reference to flights above.

Skirting
Original skirting will be retained in situ with new skirting made to match where required.

4 Fireplaces
New historically appropriate fire places will be provided at first floor level and in the snug at second floor level.

5 Plasterwork

Existing decorative plasterwork will be retained in-situ. Where only partial remains of cornice exist, new runs will be
fabricated by a specialist plaster company, e.g. Old Mould. Rooms in which no mouldings remain will have appropriate
1880s style cornices and ceiling roses.

6 Structure

It is proposed to lower the floor level of the cellar so as to provide useable space for w.c.s and other ancillary
accommodation. This will require concrete underpinning of the structural walls in accordance with the accompanying
engineers’ report from J.J. Campbell and Co.

Summary
We attach the following documentation in support of our application:

One of:

Site Notice

Newspaper advertisement
Application Form

Cheque in the amount of €1,188.80

Ten of:

1 Cathal O’Neill Drawings 609 PP 1 - 4

2 Photographic record

3 Manahan Report (Planning Consultants)

4 J.J. Campbell Report (Structural Engineers)
5 Bacon Report (Brickwork Specialist)

Garrett O'Neill
Dip. Arch M.UB.C. F.R.I. AL
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